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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Directors' report 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

The directors present their report together with the consolidated financial report of Healthbndge 
Enterprises Pty Ltd ('Group'). being the Company (Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd) 1ts 
subsidiaries, and the Group's interest in associated entities for the financial year ended 30 June 
2011, and the aud1tor's report thereon. 

1 Directors 
The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the f1nancial year are: 

Director Appointed Resigned 
Robert Cooke 9 October 2008 1 July 2011 
Neil Broekhuizen 22 October 2008 
Michael H1ll 9 October 2008 1 July 2011 
Richard Henshaw 4 November 2008 
John Hickey 9 October 2008 10 May 2011 
Tom Woolley 8 October 2008 
Kleanthes Yannakou 1 July 2011 2 December 2011 
Christopher Aughton 19 July 2011 

2 Principal actMtles 
The principal activities of the Group during the course of the financial year was the provision 
of medical serv1ces 1n the area of human reproduction and human pathology. 

3 Operating and financial review 
Overview of the Group 
The loss after tax for the equity holders of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2011 
was $13,418, 189 (2010: $23,080,0381oss). 

4 Significant changes in the state of affairs 
On 31 January 2011, the Group sold its interest in Healthbridge Diagnostics Holdings Pty 
Ltd ('HDH') to a third party for proceeds totalling $37 million, representing $36.5 milhon 
repayment of mtercompany loans and $0.93 million for sale of shares. Of these proceeds 
$2.45 m1lhon was passed to the mmority shareholder, HDH Employee Trust ('HOE '). 

Dunng the year the company completed the conversion of a property acqutred in 201 0 mto 
a new pnvate hospital and accommodation for the substantial part of the Monash IVF Pty 
ltd subsid1anes business and commenced the trading of the pnvate hosp1tal 

In the opinion of the D~rectors there were no other sigmficant changes 1n the state of affairs 
of the Group that occurred during the financial period. 

5 Environmental regulation 
The Group's operations are not subject to any S1gn1ficant environmnental regulations under 
a law of the Commonwealth or State or Terntory 

6 Dividends 
No div1dends were pa1d or declared dunng the penod. No recommendation for payment of 
dividends have been made. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Directors ' report 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

7 Events subsequent to reporting date 
On 16 September 2011 the Group divested assets tn it's equity accounted investment, 
Repromed Christchurch Ltd. This transaction will result in an immatenal gain to the Group. 

In December 2010, a subsidiary company breached a financ1al covenant with its sen1or 
lender. The breach was acknowledged by the lender but no action was taken by the lender 
whilst the subsidiary negotiated new covenants and other loan terms with the lender. An 
amendment to the funding arrangement was negotiated prior to 30 June 2011. The 
documentation for the rev1sed arrangment was executed after the financial year end 
resulting •n the loan being classiffed as current at year end 1n the financial statements of 
both subsidiary and in these consolidated accounts. 

As at the date of sigmng these accounts the Repromed F1nance Pty Ltd and its related 
entities remains compliant with its revised covenants. 

On 22 September 2011 notice was received from the Australian Taxation Office ('ATO'l 
adv1smg that a comprehens1ve risk review will be undertaken mto the parent and the 
Repromed subsidiary respective tax consolidated groups, tax affairs for the 2009 and 2010 
1ncome tax periods. At this stage the Directors are unable to determine what impact the 
review w1ll have, 1f any. The ATO rev1ew is ongomg at the date of th1s report. 

The ATO has undertaken a tax audit of the subsidiary Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd 
("Monash IVFH") and Monash IVFH's tax consolidated group over the last 2 years. The 
ATO are 1n the process of finalising the1r aud1t and requested support for the deduction of 
redemption prem1ums on certain financing instruments on an accruals basis. The ATO are 
considering an alternative view that these premiums should be deducted when paid. In late 
April2012, Monash IVFH supplied the ATO w1th strong legal opinion including senior 
counsel advice supporting the bas1s for treatment adopted by Monash IVFH. The ATO has 
not yet responded to the submissions. If the ATO maintain their position Monash l'vF couid 
appeal the decision. Whilst the Directors believe the appropnate treatment has been 
adopted if the ATO pos1t10n was upheld an estimated tax payment of $5.6 million would be 
required to be made. The company have the cash resources to make such a payment and 
would rema1n compliant With bank covenants. 

The 01rectors of Monash IVF Hold•ngs Pty Ltd approved a $2,814,036 dividend to 
shareholders on 18 October 2011 

The Board is assess1ng the sale of land and buildmgs it owns along w1th the Group's Interest 
1n the private hospital busmess. The private hospital was developed with designs and 
serv1ces m place to expand the hosp1tal beyond 1ts current conf1gurat1on of 3 operating 
theatres and 30 overn•ght beds Subsequent to the year end a Development Application 
was approved to add an additional two storeys to the buildmg and concepts tor add1t1onal 
operating theatres and ward accornmodat1on obtamed. Proceeding with this expans1on 
would dramatically improve the fmanc1al performance of the hospital business. Accountmg 
standards preclude recognition of the 1mproved f1nanc1al performance when assessmg the 
carrying value of the ex1sting assets. Accordingly an impairment of the value of the ex1sting 
assets related to the existing bus1ness has been made. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty ltd 

Directors' report 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

7 Events subsequent to reporting date (continued) 
Other than disclosed above, there has not ansen in the tnterval between the end of the 
f1nancial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and 
unusual nature likely, in the opimon of the d1rectors of the Company, to affect significantly 
the operations of the Group, the results of those operations. or the state of affairs of the 
Group, tn future financial periods. 

8 likely developments 
The Group expects to at a minimum maintain the present status and level of operations. 

Further informat1on about likely developments in the operat1ons of the Group and the 
expected results of those operations in future financial years has not been included in th1s 
report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result in unreasonable 
prejudice to the Group. 

9 Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors 
S1nce the end of the previous financial year. the Group has not 1ndemmfied or made a 
relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability any person who is or has been an 
officer or auditor of the Group. 

10 Lead auditor's independence declaration 
The Lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 5 and forms part of the 
d1rectors' report for financtal year ended 30 June 201 1. 

This re n is made in accordance w1th a resolution of the d1rectors: 

Richard Henshaw 

D1rector 

u.. 
Dated at t\t,jA • ...., th1s l'f- day of May 2012. 
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Lead auditor's independence declaration under S~ction 307C of the Corporations Act 
2001 

To the directors of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the year ended 
3 0 June 20 I 1 there have been: 

• No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations 
Act 200 I in relation to the audit; and 

• No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

KPMG 

Maurice Bisetto 
Partner 

Melbourne 

24 May 2012 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Statement of financial position 
As at 30 June 2011 

Consolidated 
lnAUD Note 2011 2010 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 79 20,259.471 14.926,633 
Trade and other receivables 17 6,078,944 6,608,871 
Current tax assets 16 1,791,754 
Other assets 18 3,144,907 5,921,623 
Total current assets 29,483,322 29,248,881 

Deferred tax assets 16 8,826,150 9,133,415 
Property, plant and equipment 13 40,740,203 33,854,275 
Intangible assets 14 206,105,440 211,109,507 
Other assets 78 3,163,930 4,030.479 
Total non-current assets 258,835.723 258,127,676 
Total assets 288,319,045 287,376,557 

Uabilities 
Trade and other payables 23 12,590,496 12,441,719 
Loans and borrowings 21 53,686,256 11.813.431 
Employee benefits 22 3,141,735 3,369,946 
Current tax payable 16 290,929 
Total current liabilities 69,709.416 27,625,096 

Loans and borrowings 27 221,755,646 266,991,895 
Employee benefits 22 566,681 969,934 
Deferred tax liabilities 16 13,576,150 11,773,094 
Total non-current liabilities 235,898,477 279,734,923 
Total liabilities 305,607,893 307,360,019 
Net assets/(liabilities) (17,288,848) (19,983,462) 

Equity 
Share capital 20 48,812,142 40,568,354 
ReseNes 565,328 (415,392) 
Retatned earnings (37.434,997) (24,052, 713) 
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 11.942,473 16,100,249 

Minority Interest (29,231 ,321) (36,083,71 1) 
Total equityi(deficit) (17,288,848) (19,983,462) 

The notes on pages 10 to 49 are an tntegral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Healthbndge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Statement of comprehensive income 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

lnAUD 

Continuing operations 
Revenue 
Raw matenals and consumables used 
Employee benefit expense 
Employee incentive scheme payments 
Deprec1at10n and amortisation expense 
Professional and other fees 
Occupancy and property expense 
IT and communications expense 
Marketing. advertising and public relations expense 
Corporate costs 
Other expenses 
Results from operating activities 

Finance income 
Fmance expense 
Net finance expense 

Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of income tax 
Loss from continued operation before income tax 

Income tax (expense)Jbenefit 
Loss from continued operation for the period after tax 

Discontinued operation 
Revenue from discontmued operauon 
Expense from discontinued operatton 

Reiated tax benefit 
Gain on sale of subsidiary 
Income tax 
Profit from discontinued operation after tax 

Other comprehensive income 
Net change 1n fair value of cash-flow hedges 
Other comprehensive Joss for the period, net of income tax 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

(Loss)/ profit attributable to. 
EquttY holders of the Company 
Minority Interest 
Loss for the period 

Total comprehensive (loss)/profit attributable to 
Equ1ty holders of the Company 
M inority Interest 
Total comprehensive (loss)/ profit for the period 

Note 

8 

9 

13,14 

10 

11 

15 

12 

6 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

83,539.472 75,772,494 
(5,512, 785) (6,240,817) 

(28,139,950) (24,460,595) 
(180,331) (228,375) 

(5,786,775) (7.414,620) 
(11 ,986,488) (10,895,124) 
(3,809,514) (2,936,266) 
{4,672,602) (4.066,598) 
(1,681.796) (1,086,415) 
(1,043.485) (1 ,093,994) 
(7,376,087) (15,205.209) 

13,349,659 2,144.481 

984,066 1,623,722 
(32, 101 ,673) (27,441,002) 

(31 ' 117,607) (25,817.280) 

(17,767,948) (23,672,799) 

(662,525) 988,532 
(18.430,473) (22,684,267) 

10,755,233 3.491,060 
(23,063,381) (16,071 ,269) 

.d l1Cl1 ':t1 ':t 
-, , -...... .. -·-

23.825,997 

11,517.849 (8,088,896) 

1,240,444 (184,526) 

1,240,444 (184,526) 

(5,672,180) (30,957.689) 

(1 3.418.189) (23.080,038) 
6,505,565 (7!693,125) 

(6,912,624) (30. 773,163) 

(12.437.469) (23,261 ,4271 
6,765,289 (7.696,262) 

(5.672, 180) (30.957.689) 

The notes on pages 10 to 49 are an integral part o f these consolidated financial statements. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

lnAUD Non-
Share Retained Hedging controlling 
capital earnings reserve interest Total 

Consolidated 
Balance at 30 June 2009 17,200,000 (1 ,016,240) (237,870) 156,858 16,102,748 

Shares tssued dunng the year 
23,368,354 736,1 94 24,104,548 

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries 
that do not result in a loss of control 43,565 7,004 (50,569) 

Loss attributable to the members of parent (23,080,038) (23,080,038) 
Mtnonty interest acqUired through busmess 
combtnatton (28,673,069) (28,673,069) 

Dtvtdends to non-controlling interest (560,000) (560,000) 

Effective portion of changes tn fatr value of 
cash flow hedges (184,526) (184,526) 

Loss atttbutable to minonty interest 
(7,693, 125) (7,693,125) 

Balance at 30 June 2010 40,568,354 (24,052,713) (415,392) (36,083,711) (19,983.462) 

Shares issued during the year 8,243,788 600,006 8,843,794 

Changes in ownership tnterest in subsidiaries 
that do not result in a loss of control 35,905 (35,905) 

Loss attnbutable to the members of parent (13.418, 189) (13,418.189) 
Dtvtdends to non-controlling interest (477.000) (477,000) 

Effective portion of changes 1n fair value of 
cash flow hedges 980,720 259,724 1,240,444 

Profit atttbutable to mmority interest 6,505,565 6,505,565 

Balance at 30 June 2011 48,812,142 (37,434,997) 565,328 (29.231.321) (17,288,848) 

The notes on oages 1 0 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Statement of cash flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

Consolidated 
/nAUD Note 2011 2010 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash receipts from customers 104,307,095 80,462,303 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (89.416.619) (78,242,376} 
Cash generated from operat1ons 14,890,476 2,219.927 
Finance costs (1 2,582,798) (13,650,169) 
Income tax paid 1.510.463 (2,084 ,157} 
N et cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities 29 3,818.141 (13,514,399} 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest recetved 888,255 
Acquisi t ion of subsidiary (including debt acquired), net of cash 
acquired 7 (26,314,789) 
Deferred consideration for prev1ous year acquisition of 7 (14,243,275) 
Acqu1s1t1on costs patd 7 (13,094,406) 
Acquisit ion of paid property, plant and eqipment 13 (26,356,602) (29,839,075) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 54,000 
Proceeds from sale of tnvestments 34,637.000 
N et cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 8,334,398 (82.603,290) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from issue of share capttal 20 8,243,759 23.368,354 
Proceeds from issue of share capital to minority in terests 20 600,006 736,194 
Proceeds from 1ssue of promissory notes 21 27,183,427 51,727,725 
Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares 21 4,097,280 
Proceeds from exerctse of share options 20 
Payment of transaction costs for loan facilities 21 (986,284) 
C~·u••u .,,._h~e~ 1"\f 1"\\Ain c:h:.roc::: 
I tC...,Ut\..1 IO...:J\.:r VI """'"'' 1 """""'' -~ 20 
Repayment of borrowmgs 21 (42,846,893) (16,547,676) 
Proceeds from loans 27 25.327,469 
Proceeds from sale of tnvestment in assoctate 15 9,509,666 
Dtvtdends patd to minority interests 20 (560,000} 
Net cash flows from/( used in) financing activities (6,819,701) 96,672,728 

Net mcrease/(decrease) in cash and cash eqUivalents 5,332.838 555,039 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 14,926.633 14,371,594 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 79 20.259.471 14,926,633 

The notes on pages 10 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated ftnancial statements. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

1 Reporting entity 

Healthbndge Enterpnses Pty Ltd (the 'Company') ts a company domtctled In Australia. The address ot the 
Company's registered office ts Aurora Place Level39, 88 Phtllip Street. Sydney, NSW 2000. The consolidated 
ftnanctal statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the 'Group' and individually as 'Group enttties') and the Group's interest m associates. 
The pnnctpal activities of the Group during the course of the financial period were the provtsion of medical 
services in the area of human reproduction and human pathology. 

2 Basis of preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance 
The financtal report is a general purpose financtal report which has been prepared tn accordance wtth Australian 
Accounttng Standards (AASBs) (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001 . The consolidated financial report of the Group compltes 
wtth InternatiOnal Financtal Reporttng Standards (IFRSsl and interpretations adopted by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 2012. 

(b) Principles of consolidation 

The Group has applied the acquisitton method for bustness combtnations as disclosed tn note 6. 

For every bustness combtnatton, the Group identifies the acquirer, which is the combintng enttty that obtams 
control of the other combining entittes or bustnesses. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating 
pohctes of an enttty so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into 
consideration potential vottng rights that currently are exercisabie. The acquisition date is the date on which 
control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgement is applied in determining the acquisttion date and determimng 
whether control is transferred from one party to another. 

Measurmg goodwill 
The Group measures goodwtll as the fa1r value of the constderatiOn transferred including the recognised amount 
of any non-controlling interesttn the acquiree, less the net recogntsed amount (generally fatr value) of the 
tdenttftable assets acqutred and habtlittes assumed, all measured as ot the acquisitton date. 

Consideration transferred Includes the fair values of the assets transferred. liabilities incurred by the Group to lhe 
previous owners of the acqutree, and equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred also 
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration and share-based payment awards of the acquires that are 
replaced mandatorily tn the business combinarron (see note 6). If a business combination results tn the 
terminatton of pre-existing relationships between the Group and the acquires. then the lower of the termtnation 
amount, as contatned in the agreement and the value of the ott-market element ts deducted from the 
constderatton transferred and recognised in other expenses 

The value of trademark acqUired in a business combination is based on the discounted esttmated royalty 
payments that have been avoided as a result of the patent or trademark being owned. The fair value of other 
Intangible assets is based on the discounted cash flows expected to be derived from the use and eventual sale 
of the assets. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(b) Principles of consolidation (continued) 
Contingent liabilities 
A contingent liabtlity of the acqUiree is assumed tn a bustness combinatton only If such a liability represents a 
present obhgation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably. 

NorN:ontrolling interest 
The Group measures any non-controlling mterest at its proportionate interest in the identifiable net assets of the 
acquiree. 

Transaction costs 
Transaction costs that the Group tncurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder's fees, legal 
fees, due diligence fees, and other professtonal and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred. 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The tinanctal statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences unttl the date that control ceases. 

Intercompany transactions. balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities withtn the Group are 
eliminated. Accounttng policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the accounting policies of the Group. 

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and 
operating polictes. Sigmficant influence ts presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 percent 
of the vottng power of another enttty. Jointly controlled entitles are those enttttes over whose activities the 
Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unantmous consent for strategic 
fmanctal and operating decisions. 

Investments in associates and jomtly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method (eqUity 
accounted investees) and are intttally recognised at cost being the fatr value of the consideration pa1d. The 
Group's investment includes goodvviU ident;fied en acquisition, net cf any accumulated impatrment losses .. The 
consolidated ftnancial statements tnclude the Group's share of the income and expenses and equity movements 
of equtty accounted investees. after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those o f the Group, from 
the date that significant influence or JOint control commences unttl the date that significant tnfluence or jotnt 
control ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds 1ts Interest tn an equity accounted 1nvestee. the 
carrying amount of that interest. including any long-term tnvestments, ts reduced to n1l, and the recognttton of 
further losses IS discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on 
behalf of the investee. 

Minonty tnterests tn the result of subsidiaries are shown separately tn the statement of comprehensive mcome 
and statement of ftnanctal posttion respectively. 

(c) Basis of measurement 
The consolidated ftnancial statements have been prepared on an accrual basts and are based on htstoncal cost 
except for the follow tng: 

• denvattve financial instruments are measured at fair value; and 
• financialmstruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. 

Fatr value is determtned based on current btd pnces for all quoted investments Valuation techniques are applied 
to determtne the fatr value for all unlisted securities, includtng recent arm's length transactions, reference to 
stmilar tnstruments and option pricing models. All derivative f tnanctallnstruments are valued ustng unadjusted 
quoted prices tn acttve markets for tdentical assets or liabilities. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(d) Functional and presentatio n currency 
The financial report is presented m Australian dollars, which is the Group's functional currency 

(e) Use of estimates and judgements 
The preparat ion of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilit ies, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and in any future periods affected. The est1mates and assumptions that have a significant risk in respect 
of estimates based on future events which could have a material impact on the assets and liabilities are: 

Impairment of goodwill 
The Qirectors have assessed the valuation of goodwill based on best available current mformation. Estimates 
assume a reasonable expectation of f uture events and are based on current trends and economic data, obta1ned 
both externally and within the Group. The directors have assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill based on 
value-m-use calculations. These calculations are based on projected cash flows covering a period not exceeding 
five years. The present value of future cash flows has been calculated using a pre-tax discount rate of 13.49% to 
determine the value-in-use. 

Estimation of fair values of assets acquired in Business combination 
The Directors have estimated the fair value of net liabilities acquired using the best available information, 
1ncluding reference to an expert report prepared by Leadenhall VRG Pty Ltd . 

(f) Going concern 
The Group is 1n a net asset deficiency posit ion of $17,288,848 (201 0: $19,983,462}, net current asset deficiency 
over current liabilities of $40.226,094 (201 O; surplus of $5,522,022) and incurred a net loss of $6,912,624 (201 0: 

$30, 773,163) . The net asset deficiency position is substantially the result of an accounting election made by the 
Group upon the consolidation of Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd. In accordance with accounting standard AASB 3 
Business Combinations, the Group has the elect ion to account for the value of the m1nority interest using either 
the acquisition method or the fair value method. This election is undertaken on a transaction by transaction bas1s. 
In accounting for the acquisition of the Monash IVF Holdings business, the Group elected to use the acquisition 
method, which resulted in the non-controlling interests being valued at their proportionate Interest 1n the 
recognised amounts of identif iable assets and liabilities of the acquires. without consideration of any portion of 
goodwill that may be attributable to the mmority 1nterest. Accordingly, this results in lower goodwill and minority 
interest values, as goodwill is not ascribed to the minority interest. Had the Group elected to account for the 
m mority Interest using the fair value method, the value of goodwill and minority interest would be increased to 
reflect the goodwill attributable to the interest held by minorities. The reason for the shortfall in net current 
assets 1s the reqUirement to class1fy the loan facility as current and this is explained further below. 

The accounts have been prepared on a go1ng concern basis, which contemplates continuity of business activities 
and the realtsation of assets and settlement of liabil ities 1n the ordinary course of bus1ness. If assets and liabilit ies 
are not realised and extuinguished m the ordinary course of business they may realise and settle for amounts 

that may be different to those stated at reporting date. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(f) Going concern {continued) 
The Directors consider that there are reasonable grounds to believe the consolidated entity Will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they fall due as forecast operating cashflows indicate that cash reseNes should be suffic1ent 
to fund operations, and there will be the contmuing financial support of the Group's bankers and other lenders, 
including the continued support of its shareholders through the capitalisation of interest accruing on shareholder 
loans until such time as cashflows generated from operat1ons are sufficient to meet repayment. 

In December 2010 a subsidiary breached a f1nanctal covenant. included 1n its loan factlity agreement. Accordtngly 
the balance outstanding of $46,310.470 at reporting date has been classified as a current liability. New terms had 
been renegotiated by 30 June 2011 however these were not documented until September 2011 . The original 
term of the facility being October 2013, rema1ns unchanged with key covenants and offset facilities being 
amended. Had the negotiations with the lender concluded prior to 30 June 2011, the outstanding current balance 
of $46,310,470 would have been classified as non~current and no current asset deficiency would exist at 30 June 
2011 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 201 1 

3 Significant accounting policies 
The accounting pohc1es set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented In these 
consolidated ftnancial statements, and have been applted consistently by Group entitles. 

(a) Foreign currency 
(i) Foreign cuffency transactionS 

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated at fore1gn exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
Monetary assets and habihues denominated tn foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The fore1gn currency ga1n or loss on monetary 1tems is the 
dtHerence between amortised cost 1n the functional currency at the beg1nn1ng of the period, adjusted for 
eHecttve interest and payments during the penod, and the amort1sed cost in fore1gn currency translated at the 
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and habllittes denominated 1n foreign 
currencaes that are measured at fa1r value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the 
date that the fair value was determtned. Non-monetary Items that are measured an terms of hlstoncal cost 1n a 
foreign currency are translated us1ng the exchange rate at the date of the transactiOn. 

(b) Financial instruments 
(iJ Non-den'vative fmancial assers 

The Group 1n1t1ally recogmses loans and receivables and depostts on the date t hat they are onglnated. All other 
financial assets are recognised tnitially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
prov1slons of the instrument. 

The Group derecognlses a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. or 
It transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financ1al asset 1n a transaction 1n which 
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any Interest in 
transferred financtal assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or habtlity. 

Fmancial assets and hab1httes are offset and the net amount presented 1n the statement of fananc1al pos1t1on 
when, and only when, the Group has a legal nght to offset the amounts and intends etther to settle on a net basts 
or to realise the asset and settle the liab1hty simultaneously. 

The Group has the followtng non-derivative financtal assets: cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables. 

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are fmanc1al assets with faxed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active 
market. Such assets are recogntsed inttially at fatr value plus any d1rectly attributable transaction costs 
Subsequent to 1nttaal recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost usang the effecttve 
Interest method, less any 1mpatrment losses. 

Loans and receivables compnse trade and other receivables. 

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances. 



Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financia l statements (continued) 
For tha year ended 30 June 2011 

(t/) Non-derivative financ~alliabtlities 
The Group tmt1ally recognises debt secunttes Issued and subordtnated liab1ht1es on the date that they are 
ongtnated . All other ftnancialllablllttes (1nclud1ng hablhtles designated at fatr value through profit or loss) are 
recogntsed 1mtiallv on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provtslons of the 
Instrument. The Group derecogn1ses a financial liability when its contractual obhganons are discharged or 
cancelled or exP1re FmanCial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented tn the statement of 
ftnancial posttlon when. and only when. the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and mtends either to 
settle on a net basts or to realise the asset and settle the l1ability simultaneously. 

The Group has the follow1ng non-derivative financial habtlittes: loans and borrowtngs, bani: overdrafts and trade 
and other payables. 

Such finenc1al ltabtltttes are recognised 1mt1ally at fair value plus any dlfectiy attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to in1ual recognitton these fmanc1al hab11ities are measured at amortised cost ustng the effective 
Interest rate method. 

(iii) Derivatrve financial mstruments, mcluding hedge accounting 
The Group holds denvat1ve ftnanc1al Instruments to hedge certam floating 1nterest rate nslc exposures. 

On tnitJal des1gnation of the hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedging 
Instruments and hedged nems, inctudrng the nsk management obtectives and strategy in undertaking the hedge 
transaction. together wrth the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedg1ng relationship. 
The Group makes an assessment. both at the Inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, 
whether the hedg1ng Instruments are expected to be "highly effective· in offsettJng the changes 1n the cash 
flows of the respective hedged Items dunng the penod for which the hedge IS designated, and whether the 
actual results of each hedge are w1thln a range of BQ-125 percent. For a cash flow hedge of a forecast 
transaction. the transaction should be highly probable to occur and should present an exposure to vanat1ons 1n 
cash flows tha could ult1mately affect reported net Income. 

Derivatives are recogn1sed in1t1ally at fair value; attributable transactiOn costs are recognised tn profit or loss as 
Incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, denvat1ves are measured at tair value and changes therein are 
acco;;r.:ad for as descnbed be!cw !>.!! denva!!Ve fl!'ll!nCil!l ms!rym~nts are valued usmg unadjusted quoted pnces 
In act1ve markets for identical assets or hab1iittes 

Cash flow hedge 
Changes m the la1r value of the denvative hedg.ng 1nsuument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised In 
other comprehensive Income to the extent that the hedge 1s effect1ve To the extent that the hedge IS 
Ineffective. changes tn fa ir value are recogmsed In profit 01 loss. 

If the hedgtng Instrument no longer meets the cnteria for hedge accounting. expnes or ts sold. terminated or 
exerc1sed, or the destgnation 1s revoked, then hedge accounting IS d1scont1nued prospectively. The cumulattve 
ga1n or loss previously recognised in other comprehensiVe 1ncome and presented in the hedging reserve in equity 
rema1ns there until the forecast trensacuon affects proflt or loss. If the forecast transactiOn 1s no longer expected 
to occur, then the balance in other comprehensive 1ncome IS recogn1sed immediately 1n profit or loss In other 
cases the amount recognised in other comprehensive 1ncome IS transferred to profit or loss '" the same penod 
that the hedged item affects profit or loss. 

(iv) Other non-trading denvatives 
When a denvative financial Instrument is not held for trad1ng, and 1S not des1gnated In a quehfymg hedge 
relationshiP. all changes 1n ItS fan value are recogmsed Immediately 1n profit or loss. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(e) Property, plant and equipmen1 
(i) Recognition and measuremem 

Items of property, plant and equ1pment are measured at cost less accumulated depreCiation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Cost mcludes expenditure that IS directly attnbutable to the acqu1sttJon of the asset. The cost of self constructed 
assets mcludes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs d1rectly annbutable to bnng1ng the assets 
to a working condition for their Intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removmg the •tems and restonng 
the srte on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs (see below). Purchased software that is 
integral to the funct1onahty of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equ1pment 

When parts of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives. they are accounted for as 
separate Items (maJor components) of property, plant and eqUipment. 

Ga1ns and losses on disposal of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment are determtned by comparing the 
proceeds from d1sposal With the carrymg amount of property. plant and equipment and are recogntsed net w 1th1n 
" Other tncome" 1n proftt or loss. 

fli) Subsequent costs 
The cost of replacing part of an ttem of property, plant and equtpment is recogn1sed in the carrytng amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future econom1c benefits embodied w ithin the part will flow to the Group and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part 1s derecogntsed. The costs of the day-to­
day servictng of property, plant and equipment are recognised 1n profit or loss as Incurred. 

(tii) Depreciation 
Depreciation 1s calculated over the depreciable amount, wh1ch ts the cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less Its res•dual value. 

Depreciation is recognised 1n profit or loss on a stra1ght hne bas1s over the estimated usefullrves of each part of 
an 1tem of plant and equipment. since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future econom1c benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 

term and their useful lives unless 1t is reasonably certa1n that the Group w ill obta1n ownership by the end of the 
lease term. Land 1s not depreciated. 

Tne estimated useful lives for the current and comparative penods are as follows; 

Property plant and equipment 

Software 
Butldmgs 

2011 
2-1 0 years 

2-10 years 
40years 

2010 
2-1 0 years 

2-1 0 years 
40 years 

Oeprec•at1on methods. useful lives and res1dual values are re111ewed at each reporting date 
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Healthbndge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(d) Intangible assets 
Goodwill 
Goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the 
Company's share of net identlftable assets of the acquired entitles at the date of acqUisition. Goodwill on 
acqutsltJOns of subs1d1aries IS tncluded in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates IS Included 1n 
investments 1n assoc1ates. 

Subsequent measuremenl 
Goodw1ll1s measured at cost less accumulated 1mpa1rment losses. Goodwtll is tested for 1mpa1rment annually, or 
more frequently if events or changes 1n circumstances 1nd1cate that 11 mtght be impatred. 

Other intangible assets 
Other intangible assets that are acqUifed by the Group, whtch have finite useful lives. are measured at cost less 
accumulaied amortisation and accumulated tmpatrment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when 1t increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
speciftc asset to wh1ch 1t relates. All other expenditure. mcludtng expenditure on internally generated goodwill 
and brands. IS recognised in pcoflt or loss as 1ncurred. 

Amortisation 
Amort1sat1on tS calculated over the cost of the asset, or an other amount substituted for cost, less tts residual 
value 

Amortisation is recogmsed In pro fit or loss on a stratght ltne basis over the estimated useful lives of intang1ble 
assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are avatlable for use, since this most closely reflects the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future econom1c benefits embodted in the asset. 

(e) Leased assets 
Leases In terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases. Upon Initial recognit•on the leased asset 1s measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fa1r 
value and the present value of the m tntmum lease payments. Subsequent to tnltial recognition, the asset Is 
accounted for 1n accordance wtth the accounting poltcy applicable to that asset. 

Other leases are operating leases and. except for Investment property, the leased assets are not recogntsed tn 
the Group's statement of frnan01al pos1tton. 

(f) Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value The cost of 1nventortes tS based Of'l the 
Weighted average cost. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 201 1 

(g) Impairment 
(i) Financial assets (Including rece1vab/es) 

A financial asset not earned at fa1r value through profit or loss IS assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there IS any objectiVe evtdence that it is 1mpa1red A f1nanctal asset IS impa1red It objective evidence 
tnd1cates that a loss event has occurred after the lnltJal recognition of the asset. and that the loss event had a 
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

An impa1rment loss 1n respect of a f1nancial asset measured at amortised cost 1s calculated as the difference 
between its carrymg amount. and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
onginal effect1ve mterest rate. Losses are recogn1sed 1n profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account 
aga1nst rece1vables. Interest on the Impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwtnding ot the 
discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impatrment loss to decrease. the decrease m 
Impairment loss is reversed through prof1t or loss 

(it) Non-financial assets 
The carrymg amounts of the Group's non financ1al assets. other than mventorles and deferred tax assets. are 
rev1ewed at each reporting date to determine whether there IS any 1ndtcat1on of 1mpa1rment If any such 
tndJcatJon ex1sts then the asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated. For goodwill and mtang1ble assets that have 
Indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount 1s estimated each year at the 
same t•me. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating un1t IS the greater of Its value 1n use and its fatr value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the est1mated future cash flows are discounted to thetr present value 
using a pre-tax dtscount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impatrment testlng, assets that cannot be tested indivtdually are 
Grouped together into the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows from cont1nu1ng usa that are 
largely Independent of the cash Inflows of other assets or Groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). 

(h) Share capital 
Ord1nary shares are classified as equtty. Incremental costs dtrectly attributable to the 1ssue of ordmary shares and 
share opuons are recogn1sed as a deduct1on from equtty, net of any tax etfects. 

(i) Employee benefits 
Liabilities ans1ng tn respect of wages and sa lanes, annual leave and any other employee benefits expected to be 
settled with1n twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts based on 
remuneration rates wh1ch are expected to be paid when the liability Is settled. All other employee benefits are 
measured at thetr present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of services provided 
by the employees up to the repomng date. The d1scount rate 1s the yleld at the reporting data on government 
bonds that have matullty dates apprOJomatJng the terms of the Group's oblfgauons. 

OJ Provisions 
A prov~s1on IS recogntsed 1f, as a result of a past event. the Group has a present legal or constructive obligatton 
that can be esttmated rehably, and 11 is probable that an outflow of econom1c benefits will be reqwed to settle 
the obligation. Prov1s1ons are determmed by d1scount1ng the expected future cash flows at a post-tax d1scount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ot money and the rtsks spec1flc to the liability. 
The unwmdmg of the d1scount Is recognised as a finance cost. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty ltd 

Notes to the f tnancial statements (continued} 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(k} Revenue 
(I) Services 

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the profit or loss on completion of services provided. An IVF 
cycle 1s completed upon egg collection (OPU). Pathology revenue is recognised on completion of pathology 
ep1sode. 

Revenue from patient tees and auxillrary med1cal supplies IS recogntsed when the medtcal procedure Is 
performed or drugs are supplied. 

(II} Goods sold 
Revenue from lhe sale of goods Is measured at the fa1r value of the consideration received or recetvable, net of 
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue ts recognised when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownetsh1p have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs 
and poss1ble return of goods can be estimated reltably, there 1s no conttnUing management involvement with the 
goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

(iu) Other revenue 
Other revenue IS recognised whe the right to receive revenue has been established. 

(I) Lease payments 
Payments made under operating leases are recogntsed tn profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease 1ncenuves recetved are recogntsed as an mtegral part of the total lease expense, over the term 
of the lease. 

Mlntmum lease payments made under ftnance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the 
reducuon of the outstanding liabihty. The finance expense Is allocated to each period during the lease term so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the rematning balance of the liability. 

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the mm1mum lease payments over the remaining term 
of the lease when the lease adjustment fs confirmed, 

lml Finance income and expense 
Ftnance Income relat1ng to interest revenue IS recognised when it becomes rece1vable on a proportional basis 
tak1ng into account the Interest rate applicable to the ftnanCtal assets. 

Finance expense compnse interest expense on borrowmgs, dividends on preference shares classtfled as 
liabihttes and losses on hedg1ng Instruments that are recogntsed in profit or loss. Finance costs are expensed as 

Foreign currency ga1ns and tosses are reported on a net basis. 

(n) Income tax 
Income tax expense comprtses current and deferred tax, Current and deferred tax are recogn1sed 1n profit or loss 
except to the extent that It relates to ttems recognfsed directly in equity or tn other comprehensive income 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recetvable on the taxable mcome or loss tor the year, us1ng tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of prevtous 
years 

19 



Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(n) Income tax (continued) 
Deferred tax rs recognised m respect of temporary drfferences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financral reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax rs not 
recognrsed for the lollowmg temporary differences: the rMJal recognttJon of assets or llablhtles In a transaction 
that is not a busmess combrnatiOn and that affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or loss. and differences 
relating to rnvestments rn subs1dranes and assocrates and 10111tly controlled entities to the extent that 11 ts 
probable that they wrll not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addrtion, deferred tax rs not recognised for 
taxable temporary differences ansing on the tnrllal recognrnon of goodwilL Deferred tax rs measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary dtfferences when they reverse, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reportrng date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabllitres are offset tf there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabrlitres and 
assets. and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entrty, or on 
drfferent tax entitres, but they tntend to settle current tax llabrlitres and assets on a net basis or therr assets and 
liabilities will be realised srmultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset rs recognised to the extent that 11 is probable that future taxable profits Will be avarlable 
against wh1ch temporary difference can be utrhsed Deferred tax assets are rev1ewed at each reporting date and 
are reduced to the extent that It rs no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised 

Additionalrncome tax expenses that anse from the distnbution of cash di\odends are recogntsed at the same tlme 
that the liability to pay the related drvrdend 1s recogntsed. The Company does not distribute non-cash assets as 
divrdends to Its shareholders. 

(I) Tax consolidation 
Health bridge Enterprrses and Its controlled ent1t1es have rmplemented the tax consohd8lron legislation and 
formed a tax-consolidated Group trom 8 October 2008. From 10 October 2008 Healthbndge Repromed Pty ltd 
and i ts controlled entltres JOined the Healthbndge Enterpnses Pty ltd tax consolidation Group. On 28 March 
2010 Healthbridge Repromed and its wholly owned subsrdtanes exrted Healthbndge Enterprrses Pty Ltd tax 
consolidated Group. On 29 March 2010 Heatthbndge Repromed and its controlled ent1t1es formed a new tax 
consolidation Group With Healthbridge Repromed Pty ltd berng the head entity. The parent entity and 
subsrdianes in the tax-consolidated Group have entered into a tax fundtng arrangement Whrch sets out the 

funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated Group rn respect of tax amounts. During the year 
Healthbrldge Hawthorn Pty Ltd, Healthbridge Hawthorn Finance Pty Ltd, Healthbrtdge Hawthorn Holdings Pty 
Ltd, Healthbridge CMS Pty Ltd, Healthbridge Property Hotdrngs Pty ltd, Healthbndge Property Hawthorn Ply Ltd 
and Healthbndga Obstetrics Holdings Pty Ltd JOined the Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd tax consolidated Group. 

Healthbridge Dragnosttc Holdrngs Pty Ltd and two subsrdrary entttles w1thrn the Group had rmplemented tax 
conoslidaoon legislatron and have formed a tax-alnsohdated Group from 27 March 2009. lh1s tax consolidated 
group was sold on 31 January 2011 as part of the HDH sale 

Monash IVF Holdrngs Pty Ltd and Its subsrdianes implemented the tax consolidation Jegrsletton and have formed 
a tax-consolidated Group from 14 December 2007. Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd and subsrdranes rn the tax 
consolidated Group have entered 1nto a tax funding arrangement which sets out the funding obligations of 
members of the tax-consolidated Group rn respect of tax amounts. 

Current tax expense (income). deferred tax habrlities and deferred tax assets ansrng from temporary differences 
of the members of the tax-consolrdated Group are allocated to the Company and recognrsed uslng a 'Group 
allocauon' approach Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liab1httes are measured by reference to the carrying 
amounts of the assets and habthtres m the Company's balance sheet and the11 tax values applyrng under tax 
consohdauon. 

Any current tax liabrhttes (or assets) and deferred tax assets ansrng from unused ta:K losses of the subsrdraries are 
assumed by the head enuty, and are recognised as amounts payable/(recelvable) to other entitles 1n the tax· 
consolidated Group tn con1uncuon with the tax funding arrangement amounts. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(n) Income tax (continued) 
The Company recogntses deferred tax assets apstng from unused tax losses to the extent that It IS probable that 
future taxable profits of the Company will be available against whtch the assets can be uttlised. The Company 
assesses the recovery of 1ts unused tax losses and tax credtts only 1n the penod In which they arise, and before 
assumption by the head entity, in accordance wtth AASB 112 applied m the context of the tax-consolidated 
Group Any subsequent period adjustments to deterred tax assets ansmg from unused tax losses as a result of 
revised assessments ot the probability of recoverab1hty are recognised by the head entity only 

(iQ Nature of tax funding srrsngamancs and tax shsrmg arrangements 
The rax fund1ng arrangements require payments to/from the head entuy equal to the current tax habihty/(asset) 
assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity, resulting 1n the 
Company recognising an inter-entity payable/(receivable) equal in amount to the tax liability/ (asset) assumed. The 
Inter-entity payable/(recelvable) is at call. 

Contnbuttons to fund the current tax hab1lit1es are payable as per the tax funding arrangement and reflect the 
tlmtng of the head enuty's obhgatton to make payments for tax habilittes to the relevant tax authont1es 

The head entity In conJunction with other members of the tax-consolidated Group, has also entered into a tax 
shanng agreement. The tax shanng agreement provtdes for the determination of the allocation of rncome tax 
liabli1tres between the entttles should the head ent1ty default on its tax payment obligattons. No amounts have 
been recogn1sed in the financtal statements 1n respect of th1s agreement as payment of any amounts under the 
tax shanng agreement IS constdered remote. 

(o) Goods and services tax 
Revenue. expenses and assets are recogmsed net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). except where 
the amount of GST incurred 1s not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances. the GST is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 

Recetvables and payables are stated Wtth the amount of GST mcluded. The net amount of GST recoverable from. 
or payable 10, the ATO is Included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial posiuon. 

Cash flows are mduded in the statement of cash flows on a gross baSIS The GST components of cash flows 

arising from investing and financrng activities which are recoverabie from. or payabie to. ihe ATO are ciass1fieo ils 
operating cash flows. 

(p) Investments accounted for using the equity method 
The equ1ty method of accounting has been applied and recogntsed 10 the ftnanctal statements 1n relation to all 
assoc1ated compan1es An associated company IS a company over wh1ch the economic entJty 1s able to exere1se 
stgn1f1cant Influence. 
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Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 2011 

(q) Borrowing and preference shares 
Borrow1ngs are class1f1ed as current hab1llties unless the Group/Company has an unconditional rtght to defer 
settlement of the liab1hty tor at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Borrow1ngs are 1mtially recogmsed at fair value. net of transaction costs 1ncurred. Borrow1ngs are subsequen11y 
measured at amost1sed cost. Any differences between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount IS recognased in the statement of comprehensive income over the penod of the borrowmgs using the 
effective mterest method. 

Preference shares, wh1ch are mandatorily redeemable on a spec1f1c date. are classlf1ed as liabilities. The dividends 
on these preference shares are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 1ncome as f1nance costs. 

(r) New standards and Interpretations not yet adopted 
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effectiVe for annual penods 
beg1nn1ng after 1 July 2010, and have not been applied in prepanng these consolidated financial statements. 
None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financ1al statements of the Group, 
except for AASB 9 Financ1allnstruments, which becomes mandatory for the Group's 2014 consolidated financial 
statements and could change the classification and measurement of financial assets. The Group does not plan to 
adopt this standard early and the extent of the Impact has not been dete1mmed 
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4 Financial risk management 
Overview 
The Group has exposure to the following nsks from Its use of financtal instruments: 

• credit risk. 
• liqutdtty nsk; and 
• market risk. 

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks. their objecttves, policies 
and processes For measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures 
are included throughout this ftnancial report. 

Risk management polictes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropnate 
risk limits and controls. and to monttor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management polictes and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condttiOns and the Group's activities. The Group, through their 
training and management standards and procedures. aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

(a) Credit risk 
Credit nsk ts the risk of financtalloss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financtal instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises princtpally from the Group's receivables from customers and 
investment securities. 

Credit nsk is managed on a consolidated Group basts and rev1ewed regularly by the administrative I accounts 
receivable function. Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures ensuring, to the extent possible, that 
customers and counterparties to transactions are of sound cred1t worthiness and includes the utilisation of 
sysiems for the approvaL granting and renewal of credit limits, the regular man;toring of exposure aga~nst such 
lim1ts and the monttoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties. Such monitoring ts 
used tn assessing receivables for impairment. 

Payment remtnder not1ces are issued to customers wtth outstanding balances at 30, 60 and 90 days. After which. 
collection of thts debt is handled by a collection agency. 

(b) liquidity r isk 
Ltquidity risk arises from the possibtlity that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwtse 
meettng 1ts obligations related to financial liabihttes. The Group manages this risk through the following 
mechantsms: 

• prepanng forward-looking cash flow analysis in relatton to its operational, tnvesttng and financing activtties: 
• momtonng undrawn credit facthttes: 
• obtatntng fundtng from a variety of sources; 
• maintatning a reputable credit profile; 
• managing credit nsk related to financtal assets: 
• only tnvesttng surplus cash With major 1inancialtnstituttons; and 
• companng the matumy profile of financial liabilities With the reahsatton profile of financ1al assets. 
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(c) Market risk 
Market nsk 1s the risk that changes in market pnces. such as fore1gn exchange rates. interest rates and equity 
pnces will affect the Group's 1ncome or the value of rts holdings of f1nancialrnstruments. The ObJective of market 
nsk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising 
the return. The Group enters rnto derivatives. and also incurs frnancialliabilities. 1n order to manage market risks. 
All such transactions are carried out with1n the guidelines set by the Board. 

Forego exchange risk 
The Group is not exposed to material levels of foreign currency nsk at the reportrng date or during the financial 
year. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate nsk is managed using a mix of fixed and floating rate debt_ At 30 June 2011 approximately 75% of 
Group debt is fixed. Th1s IS achieved by entering 1nto rnterest rate swaps to mttrgate interest rate risk on floating 
debt. 

Price risk 
The Group is not exposed to any material commodity price risk. 

Capital management 
Management control the capital of the Group in order to maintain an appropriate debt to equrty ratio, provide the 
shareholders with adequate returns and to ensure that the Group can fund 1ts operations and continue as a go~ng 
concern. The Group's debt and capital rncludes ordinary share capital and financial liab1hties. supported by financ1al 
assets. 

Management effectiVely manages the Group's capital by assessing the Group's financial nsks and adJUSting 1ts 
capital structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses •nclude the 
management of debt levels, distributions to shareholders and share issues. 

There are no externally imposed cap1tal requirements. 

5 Economic dependency 
The continuing prov1s1on of medical servces 1n the area of human reproduction IS dependent on the supply of 
certain drugs for use 1n 1ts programs for wh1ch only two suppliers operate 1n Australia. Any shortage of supply, or 
delay 1n delivery could have a material impact on the company's operations. The Group's Australian operations are 
dependent on remaming licensed by the relevant state Health Departments. 

24 



Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 201 1 

6 Discontinued operations 
In January 2011 the Group sold rts ent1re human pathology segment; the segment was not a drscontinued 
operation or class1f1ed as held for sale as at 30 June 2010 and the comparative Income statement has been re­
presented to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing operatrons. Management committed 
to a plan to sell th1s segment early in 2011. 

JnAUD Note 2011 2010 
Results of discontinued operation 
Revenue 10,755,233 3,491,060 
Raw matenals and consumables (2,670,236) (923,805) 
Employee benefits expense (10,784,984) (8, 180,095) 
Employee incentives benefit scheme 
Deprecratlon and amortisation (1,193,943) (1 '1 06,434) 
Professional and other fees (469,859) (1 ,909,475) 

Occupancy and property costs (3,660,872) (2.122,585) 
IT and communication expenses (430,569) (2,025,743) 
Marketing, advertising and public relations (1,998,379) 
Corporate costs (125,000) 

Other expenses (1. 746,518) 
Finance 1ncome 16,979 196,868 

Prof1t I (loss) before income tax (12,308, 148) (1 2,580,209) 

Income tax 4,491,313 

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (1 2,308,148) (8,088,896) 

Prof1i attributable to mmority inte;est !3. 015.496) (5,809,552) 
Profit attributable to members of the parent entity (9,292,652) (2,279,344) 

Cash flows from discontinued operation 
Net cash from operatrng actiVIties (11,114,205) (13.138,970) 

Net cash from investing activ1t1es (1,714,496) (9,767.473) 

Net cash from financing activities 
Net cash from discontinued operation (12,828,701) {22,906,443) 
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7 Acquisitions of subsidiaries and minority interests 
Prior year acquisition 

On 22 September 2009 the Group acqu1red approximately 80 per cent of both the ordinary shares in Monash 
IVF Pty Ltd (the acquiree) and the mandatory redeemable preference shares (treated as debt instruments), for 
$37.7m in cash. The acquiree's principal activity is the provision of medical serv1ces in 1he area of human 
reproduction. 

From the date of acquisition the acquiree contributed revenue of $46,283k and loss of $4,718k (excluding the 
transaction costs). If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2009, management estimates that contributed 
revenue would have been $93,635k and profit $4,550k (excluding the transaction costs). In determining these 
amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustments, that arose on the date of acquisition 
would have been the same if the acquisition had occured on 1 July 2009. 

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities on acqUisition date: 

lnAUD 

Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Other non-current assets 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans and borrowings 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Employee benefits 
Trade and other payables 
Net identifiable liabilities 

Less: M tnority interest acquired 
Less: Fatr value of redeemable preference shares 
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 
Goodwill on acqUisition 

Cash acquired 
Cash paid for ordinary and redeemable preference shares 
T ransactlon costs 

Note 

13 
74 

16 

14 

Pre-
acquisition 

carrying 
amounts 

3,256,000 
676.447 
470,033 

6,098,000 
11.373,000 

(154,034,000) 
(6,1 00.207) 
(2,172,000) 

(29,041,000) 
(169.473, 727) 

Cash advance to fac1fitate the pay-down of external debt of Monash 
Net cash outflow 

Fair value 
adjustments 

20.495.900 
6.052.368 

(3,365,710) 

23,182,558 

Recognised 
values on 

acquisition 

3,256,000 
21,172,347 

6,522,401 
6,098,000 

11,373,000 
(154,034,000) 

(9,465,917) 
(2,172,000) 

(29,041,000) 
(146,291,169) 

28,673,069 
56,270,547 
(37,687,789) 
(99,035,342) 

11.373,000 
(37,687,789) 
(13,094.406) 

(8,000,000) 
(47.409,195) 

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were determined based on appllcable AASBs tmmedtately before the 
acquisition . The values of assets, liabilities. and contingent liabilities recognised on acquisition are their 
est1mated fa1r values. 

The goodwill recogn1sed on the acquisition is anributable mainly to the skills and technical talent of the acquired 
business's work force and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the company into the 
Group's ex1st1ng business (see note 14). 
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7 Acquisitions of subsidiaries and minority interests (continued) 
Transactions separate from the acquisition 
The Group Incurred acquisition related cost of $13.1 million relatmg to external legal fees, due diligence costs, 
financing cost and other costs. These costs have been recognised in Group's consolidated profit and loss. The 
Group also pa1d a $8 million cash advance to the acquires on acquiSitiOn, to facilitate the pay-down of external 
debt. 

Dunng the 2010 penod, the Group settled deferred cons•deration for its prior period acquisition of Repromed 
Australia. An amount of $14,243,275 was pa1d as full and f1nal settlement for the Group's interest. Related 
transaction fees increased by $196,182 over expected transaction fees. 
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8 Revenue 

lnAUD 

Service revenue 
Drug sales 
Government grants 
Other revenue 

9 Employee benefit expense 

lnAUD 

Salaries and other employee benefits 
Superannuation contributions 

10 Other expenses 

lnAUD 

Transaction fees 
Service provider sign-on fee 
Loss on sale of assoc1ate 
Impairment loss intangibles 
Impairment loss PPE 

Note 

7 

14 
13 

Consolidated 

201 1 2010 

80,987,100 
892,703 

96,000 
1,563,669 

83.539.472 

73,632,295 
1.639,869 

89.460 
410,870 

75,772.494 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

26,310,939 
1,829,011 

28,139,950 

21,515,240 
2,945,355 

24.460,595 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

374,959 
1,549,000 
4,546.815 
am:;-,,~ 
..JV -vt V I V 

13,094,406 
1,500,000 

&::H'\ Qn':l v ,v,vvv 

7.376,087 15,205,209 

Loss on sale of associate: On 19 November 2010 the Group divested assets 1n its equity accounted 
mvestment. IVF Auckland Limited. The transaction resulted in a loss of $374,959. 

11 Finance income and finance costs 
Recognised in profit or loss 

lnAUD 

Interest 1ncome 
Movement in fair value of derivative instruments 

Finance income 

Borrowing costs 
Interest costs on financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Finance costs 
Net f inance expense recognised in profit or loss 

Note 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

984,066 693,593 

930,129 

984,066 1,623.722 

(526,964) (410,031) 

(31 ,574,709) (27,030,971) 

(32,1 01,673) (27,441,002) 
(31 ,117,607) (25,817,280) 
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12 Income tax expense 

lnAUD 

Current tax (expense)/beneflt 
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit 
Total mcome tax (expense)/benefit 

Note 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

(572,220) 
(90,305) 

(662,525) 

123,387 
5,356.458 

5.479,845 

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and pre-1ax accounting profit 

lnAUD 

Loss for the penod 
Total income tax (beneftt)/expense 
Loss excluding income tax 

1ncome tax using the Group's statutory mcome tax 
rate of 30% (201 0: 30%) 
Non-deductible tnterest 
Ut1lisat1on of tax losses 
Transaction fees capitalised 
lnvetment allowance 
DT A not recognised 
DTA movement through OCI 
AdJustment for discontinued operations 
Other 1tems (net) 
Under/(over) prov1sion of previous year 

Note 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

(6.912.624) (30, 773,163) 

662,525 (5.479,845) 
(6,250,099) (36,253,008) 

(1 ,875,030) (1 0,875,902) 

1,660,878 1.258,836 
(1,281,263) 

710,208 
(93, 135) 

1,364,045 4,008,257 
531,618 55,358 
567,767 
583,179 456,181 

(888,669) (999,648) 
~C::'l 1';')1; 
vvL • ..J4oJ 

tr:..II70QIIc;;\ 
\VJ-r' o..~ ,t..rTW/ 
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13 Property, plant and equipment 

lnAUD 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 30 June 2009 
Additions 
Acquist1on through business combination 
Disposals 
Balance at 30 June 201 0 

Additions 
Disposals due to sale of business 
Disposals 
Balance at 30 June 2011 

lnAUD 

Depreciation and impairment losses 

Balance at 30 June 2009 
Acqu1sition through business combination 

Deprec1at1on for the year 
Balance at 30 June 2010 

Depreciation for the year 
Impairment loss 
Balance at 30 June 2011 

Carrying amount 

At 30 June 2010 
At 30 June 2011 

Land 

7,790,000 

7,790,000 

7,790,000 

land 

7,790,000 
7.790,000 

Consolidated 

Plant and 
Building equipment 

4,344,740 
10,794,314 11,254,761 

8,954,666 
(273,419) 

10,794,314 24,280,748 

16.957,331 5,829,609 
(7,800,504) 

(88,210) 
27,751,645 22.221,643 

Consolidated 

Plant and 
Building equipment 

(751,090) 
(5,698,666) 
I"J C::C1 f\")1\ 
\L,uut,V..l l / 

(9.010,787) 

(161,715) (3,303,768) 
{3,937,542) (609,273) 
(4,099,257) (12,923,828) 

10,794,314 15,269,961 
23,652.388 9.297.81 5 

All propery, plant and equipment assets are held as security by lenders of commercial loans detailed in note 21_ 

Total 

4,344,740 
29,839,075 
8,954,666 

(273,419) 
42,865,062 

22.786,940 
(7.800.504) 

(88,210) 
57,763,288 

Total 

(751.090) 
(5,698,666) 
1'1 t:C:1 /V)1 \ 
\L,;.JV1 1V..JIJ 

(9,01 0,787) 

(3,465,483) 
(4,546,815) 

ll7,023,085) 

33,854,275 
40,740,263 

The carrying value of the assets of Healthbridge Property Hawthorn Pty Ltd, being land and buildings, and Healthbridge Hawthorn 
Pty Ltd, plant and equipment, have been rmpaired in accordance with accounting standards based on the estimated future 
cashflows of the busrness. These future cashtlows do not rnclude benefits expected to arise from improving and enhancing the 
assets performance. The property was developed With a view to future expansion and costs were rncurred to facilitate this 
expansion pnmarily through the design and provisroning of services tor a larger faci li ty. Subsequent to year end a Development 
Application was approved to expand the site with an additional two storeys of hospital use. A significant improvement in the 
financial performance of the facrlity is forecast to arise from the operations of the hospital when the site is further developed. 
However this rmproved performance cannot be used to support the costs incurred to develop the site. Accordingly an impairment 
of $4.546,815 has been recognised. 
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14 Intangible assets 
Consolidated 

lnAUD 2011 2010 

Software 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 8.467.156 7,790,709 

Additions 21 .709 

Acquisrtron through business combination 676.447 

Accumulated am or tisaliOn and impairment (3.721.072) (2.434,961) 

Net carryrng amount 4,767,793 6,032,195 

Trademark 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 19,845,000 4,516,000 

Acqursrtion through business combination 15,329.000 

Net carryrng amount 19,845,000 19,845.000 

Public contract 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 688,000 688,000 

Acqursition through busmess combination 
Accumulated amortisation and 1mparrment (374,347) (236,750) 

Net carry~ng amount 313,653 451 ,250 

Pat1ent relationships 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 6.977.000 3,446,000 

Acqursrtron through business combination 3,531,000 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (6,977,000) (5,564,600) 

Net carrytng amount 1.412 400 

Empiovmenc Concraccs 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 1,922.000 286,000 

Acquisition through business combination 1,636,000 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (1 ,213,692) (573,024) 

Net carrying amount 708,308 1,348.976 

Goodwill 
Cost (gross carrying amount) 182,019,686 82,984.344 

Acquisition through business combination 99.035,342 

lmpa1rment loss (1 ,549,000) 

Net carrymg amount 180,470,686 182.019.686 

Total mtangible assets 
Cost (gross carryrng amount) 219.940.551 219,918,842 

Accumulated amortrsatron and impairment (13.835,111) (8,809,335) 

Net carryrng amount 206,105,440 211,109.507 
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14 Intangible assets (continued) 
Reconciliation of carrying amount at beginning and end of the period 

lnAUD 

Software 
Carrymg amount - opening 
Additions 
Acquisition through business combination 
Amortisation 
Carrying amount- closing 

Trademark 
Carrying amount - opemng 
AcqUisitJOn through busmess combination 
Carrymg amount - closing 

Public contract 
Carrying amount - opening 

Amortisation 
Carrying amount - closmg 

Patient relationships 
Carrying amount - open1ng 
Acquis•tion through bustness combination 
Amortisation 
Carrying amount - clostng 

c~""''""''_.. .......... r ......... ,.,. ...... ,.. 
C-IIIIJIUYII/t;l" VUI"IOC.,(.:l 

Carrying amount - opening 
Acquisition through business combination 
Amortisation 
Carrying amount - closing 

Goodwt/1 
Carrying amount - opemng 
Goodwill - f1nalisation or prov1s1onal accounting for Healthbndge Repromed 
Acqu1s1t1on through busmess comb1nat1on 
lmpatrment loss 
Carrytng amount - clos1ng 

Total intangible assers 
Carry1ng amount - opentng 
Goodwill - finalisat1on of provtsional accountlng for Healthbridge Repromed 
AcqUisitton through bus•ness combtnauon 
Amorttsatton and tmpatrmern loss 
Add1t1ons 

Carrv1ng amounr - clossng 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

6,032,195 6,548,571 

21.709 
676.447 

(1,286,11 1) (1 ,192.823) 
4,767,793 6,032,195 

19,845,000 4,516,000 
15,329,000 

19.845.000 19.845,000 

451,250 588,853 
(137,597) (137,603) 

313,653 451,250 

1.412.400 1,459,593 
3,531,000 

( 1.412.400) (3,578,193) 

1 412.400 

1,348,976 217,308 
1,636,000 

(640,6681 (504,332) 

708,308 1,348,976 

182.019,686 83,015,773 
(31 .429) 

99,035,342 
(1,549,000) 

180,470,686 182,019,686 

211.109,507 96,346,098 
(31.429) 

120,207,789 
(5,025,776) (5,412,951) 

21.709 
206,105,440 211 '1 09,507 
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14 Intangible assets (continued) 
lmapirment testing for cash-generatjng units containing goodwill 

lnAUD 

Goodwill allocated to: 
Repromed Finance Pty Ltd 
Monash IVF Holdtngs Pry Ltd 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

81.435,344 
99,035,342 

180,470,686 

82,984,344 
99,035,342 

182;019,686 

For the purpose of impairment testmg, goodwill acquired tn the pnor penods rs allocated to Repromed Finance Pty 
Ltd and Monash IVF Holdings Pry Ltd whtch represent the lowest levels wtthrn the Group at which the goodwill is 
monitored for tnternal management purposes. 

The recoverable amount of Repromed Finance Pty Ltd and its control led entities and Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd 
and tts controlled entittes was based on its value in use. The carrying amount of Repromed Finance Pty ltd and its 
controlled entities was determined to be higher than its recoverable amount resulting tn an impatrrnent loss of 
$1,549,000 (201 0: nil) betng recogntsed 

Value 1n use was determined by discounting the future cash f lows generated from the continuing use of the unit. 
The calculation of the value in use was based on the followmg key assumptions: 

• Cash flows were projected based on past expenence, actual operating results and the 5-year business plan 
approved by the Board in 2011 . Cash flow for a further period were extrapolated ustng a constant growth rate 
of 3 percent (201 0: 3%), based on directors' understanding of expected future business development 

• A pre-tax discount rate of 13-14 o/o (201 0: 1 3-14 %) was applied tn determintng the recoverable amount. The 
dtscount rate was estimated based on past experience, and tndustry average weighied cost of capitaL 

The recoverable amount in Repromed Finance Pty Ltd is sensitive to possible changes in EBIT Repromed Finance 
Pty Ltd is forecasting for EBIT to return to 2009 levels within three years. A decrease tn forecast annual EBIT would 
result tn further tmpairment. 

Should the average actual growth in Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd decrease by half of management's forecast the 
amount by which the Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd recoverable amount exceeds tts carrying amount may decrease 
from $47m to $9m 
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15 Equity accounted investees 
The Group's share of profit in tts equity accounted investees for the year was nil (201 0; ml) 

Summary financial informatton for equitY accounted investees, not adjusted for the percentage ownershtp held by 
the Group: 

lnAUD Owner- Current Non-current Total assets Current Non- current Total liabilities 
ship assets assets liabilities liabilities 

2011 

Repromed New 47.5% 
Zealand Limited 712,278 1,973,249 2,685,527 831 ,323 1,349,134 2,180.457 

712,278 1,973,249 2,685,527 831,323 1,349,134 2,180,457 

2010 

Repromed New 47.5% 
Zealand Limited 2,072,527 2,482,447 4,554,974 1,834,270 3,335,965 5,170,235 

2,072.527 2.482.447 4, 554,974 1,834,270 3,336,965 5,170,235 

The Group has not recognised accumulated losses relating to Repromed New Zealand Limited as they exceed the 
interest in the associate. 

34 



Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 30 June 201 1 

16 Tax assets and liabilities 
Current tax assets and liabilities 

lnAUD 

Current tax rece1vable/(hability) 

Deferred tax liability 

lnAUD 

Opening balance 
Acquired through bus1ness combinatiOn 
Charged to mcome 
Closing balance 

Deferred tax asset 

lnAUD 

Opening balance 
Charged to Income 
Charged to other comprehensive income 
Closing balance 

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax assets and liab1liues are attributable to the following: 

DeferTed tax 
!!!!!!!~ 

For the For the 
period ended period ended 

lnAUD 30/06/2011 30/06/2010 

Property, plant and equipment 191,158 370,066 

Intangible assets 1,502,824 
Employee benefits 395,329 1,301,964 
Loans and borrowings 397,348 2,785.244 
Trade and other receivables 14,127 9,835 
Trade and other payables 114,908 327,652 
Tax losses earned forward 5.486,027 2.452,228 
Other Items 1,661,944 383,602 
Cash flow hedges 565,309 
Tax assets/hab1lities 8,826,150 9.133.415 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

(290,929) 1,791,754 
(290 929) 1,791,754 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

(11,773,094) (153,412) 
(9,465,9171 

(1,803,056) (2,153,765) 
( 13,576, 150) (11.773,094) 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

9,133,415 1,623.192 
258,044 7,510,223 
(565,309) 

8,826, 150 9,133,415 

Deferred tax 
liabilities 

For the period For the period 
ended ended 

30/06/2011 30/06/2010 

130.861 
639,857 10,222.719 

19.372 
4,397 181,138 

204,500 
12,577,163 1.369,237 

13,576,150 11,7731094 

D1rectors believe that tax losses are recoverable based on fu ture budget forecasts and rhe1r understanding of 
bus1ness development and future growth in demand for IVF and pathology services. 
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17 Trade and other receivables 

lnAUD 

Current 
Trade receivables 
Provision for impairment 

Other debtors 
Loan to other related party 
Accrued income 

18 Other assets 

lnAUD 

Current 
Prepayments 
Inventory 
GST receivable from Australian Tax Office 
Other current assets 

Non-current 

Prepayments 
Investments 
Related party loans 

19 Cash and cash equivalents 

lnAUO 

Cash at bank and in hand 
Short-term bank deposits 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash -and cash equivalents in the statement 
of cash flows 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

3,553,179 3,855,896 
(146,877) (145.467) 

3,406,302 3,710.429 

2,075,552 1.294,645 
25,149 1,000,000 

571 ,941 603.797 
6,078,944 6,608,871 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

1,106,389 
559,756 
168,995 

1,309,767 
3,144,907 

250.412 
2,913,518 
31 i 63.930 

1,820,549 
1,758,134 
2,049,600 

293,340 
5,921,623 

250,054 
3.780.425 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

6,373,694 
13,885,777 
20.259.471 

20,259,471 

5,910,136 
9,016,497 

14,926,633 

14,926,633 

The Group's exposure to Interest rate nsk and a sens1t1vtty analysis for fmancial assets and l1ab1lities are dtsclosed 1n 

note 24. 
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20 Capital and reserves 
Share capital 

On 1ssue at 30 June- fully paid 
A class ordtnary shares 
B class ordinary shares 
Z class shares 
Z class special shares 

Number of ordinary shares 

30 June 201 1 30 June 2010 

29,705,487 25,242,894 
19,106,666 15.325.469 

10 10 
10 10 

48,812,173 40.568,383 

Share capttal of the Group is div1ded 1nto A ordtnary shares, B ordtnary shares and Z class shares. A and B ordinary 
shares confer on their holders the same entitlements in all respects. Z class shares do not confer on their holders 
any entitlements to participate 1n the profits or assets or attend and vote at any general meeting. Subject to and 
Immediately pnor to a exit event each Z class shnm w1ll hp. Rlltomattcally converted, without any reqwement for 
board or share holder approval. into B Ordinary Share by subdividing Z class share into a greater number of shares 
in accordance with the formula set. 

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on wmding up of the parent enttty 1n proportion to the 
number of shares held. At shareholder meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, 
otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. 

Issuance of ordinary shares 
Otrectors resolved on the issuance of ordinary shares dunng the year ended 30 June 2011 as follows: 

Date 
13 August 2010 
17 November 2010 
4 February 2011 

number of shares 
3,349,234 
3,687,230 
1.207,326 

All shares are 1ssued at a price of $1 per share and are fully paid. 

Hedging reserve 
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulat1ve net change m the fa1r value of cash flow 
hedgmg instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred. 

Unused frahking credits 

Unused frank1ng credits 

Company 
2011 

4,188,768 
2010 

4,188,768 

The above ava1lable amounts are based on the balance of the dividend frank1ng account at year-end adjusted for 
frankmg credits that w1ll anse from the payment of the current tax liabilities. The ability to utilise the franking 
credits is dependent upon there be1ng sufficient available profits to declare d1v1dends. 
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21 loans and borrowings 

This note prov1des Information about the contractual terms of the Group's Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
wh1ch are measured at amortised cost . For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and 
liquidity risk, see note 24. 

tnAUD 

Non-current liabilities 
Commercial loans 
Promissory notes 
Accumulated interest - Promissory notes 
Redeemable preference shares ('RPS') 
Accumulated interest- RPS 
Capitalised finance facility fees 
Derivatives 

Current liabilities 
Derivatives 
Commercral loans and other loans 
Capitalised finance facility fees 
Other loans 

Terms and debt repayment schedule 
Terms and condit ions of outstanding loans were as follows: 

tnAUD Nominal interest 
Currency rate 

Commercial loans AUD 8% 

Commercial loans AUD 9% 

Promissory notes AUD 14% 

Redeemable preference 
shares AUD 14% 

Redeemable preference 
shares AUD 16% 

Total fnterest-bearing liabilities 

Year of maturity 

2013 
2013 
2017 

2017 

2014 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

83,099,783 
73,326.437 
23,518,045 
27,041 ,150 
13,373,253 

(487,385) 
1,884,363 

221,755,646 

241 ,786 
54,143,218 

(931,248) 
232.500 

53.686.256 

139,743,821 
81 ,687,725 
11,885,855 
27,465,658 
8,944,431 
(2,735,595) 

266,991,895 

3,898,237 
7 ,915,194 

11,813.431 

Consolidated 
.... 1'\.44 
LVII 

Face value Carrying amount 

46,999,932 46,999.932 
90.475,569 90.475,569 
96,844.482 96,844,482 

21,219,763 21 ,219,763 

19,194,640 19,194,640 

274,734,386 274,734,386 

Commercial loans are secured over all assets of Healthbridge Repromed Pty Ltd, Healthbridge Property Hawthorn 
Pty Ltd and Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd and their controlled entities. w1th a total carrying amount of $355m 
(2010: $332m). Loans contain certain covenants requinng quarterly compliance. In December 2010 Healthbridge 
Repromed PW Ltd breached a financial covenant. included 1n its loan facility agreement, accordingly the balance 
outstanding o f $46.310,470 at reporting date has been classified as a current liability. In September 2011 . the 
Group agreed terms w ith its financier to amend the loan facility agreement such that the new covenants have 
been met. The original term of the facility being October 2013, remains unchanged with key covenants and offset 
fac1hties being amended. Had the negotiations been completed prior to the balance date, the outstnading balance 
would have been classified as current. 

Unused debt facility amounted to nil as at 30 June 2011 (20 10: $5m) . 
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21 l oans and borrowings (continued) 
Promissory notes accrue interest on a monthly basis, however prom1ssory notes and interest are payable in cash 
on the earher of 30 Novemeber 2017, tmmedtately prior to the date of share sale or listing on ASX or as elected by 
the dtrectors of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty ltd. 

RPS's of$ 19,222,314 must be redeemed on the earlier of the 30 November 2017, immediately prior to the date 
Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd is listed on the ASX or if there is a sale of all of the shares. RPS's of $17,187,775 
must be redeemed on the earlier of the 16 December 2014, immediately prior to the winding up or if there is a 
sale of all of the shares of Monash IVF Holding Pty Ltd. RPS's accumulate interest on a monthly basis. 

Promissory notes and Redeemable preference shares are not secured but rank in priority to ordinary shareholders 
upon wind-up. For accounting purposes the Group has classified these as a debt Instrument. 

In AUD Currency 

Commerclal loans AUD 

Commercial loans 
Promissory notes AUD 

Redeemable preference 
shares AUD 

Redeemable preference 
shares AUD 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 

22 Employee benefits 

!nAU!J 

Current 

Ltability for long seNtce leave 
Ltabthty for annual leave 
Total employee benefits- current 

Non-current 

Liability for long service leave 
Total employee benef1ts- non current 

rate Year of maturity 

7% 2013 
8% 2013 
14% 2017 

14 o/o 2017 

16% 2014 

Consolidated 
2010 

Face v1lue Carrying amount 

85,253,719 85,253,719 
62.495,296 62.495,296 
93.492,887 93.492,887 

19,222,314 19,222,314 

17,187,775 17,187,775 
277,651,991 277,651,991 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

1,333,045 
1,808,690 

3.141,735 

566,681 
566,681 

1,023,676 
2,346,270 
3,369.946 

969.934 
969,934 

A provtslon has been recognised for employee benefits relating to long seNtce leave for employees. In calculating 
rhe present value of future cash flows 1n respect of long seNtce leave. the probabtlity of long seNice leave being 
taken IS based upon histoncal data. The measurement and recognitton cntena for employee benefits has been 
included in note 3. 
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23 Trade and other payables 

Current 
/nAUD 

Trade payables 
Accrued expense 
Prepaid income 
Other current liabilities 

24 Financial assets 
Credit risk 
Exposure to credit risk 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

2.099,355 2,355.440 
1.463,609 1,569,494 
4,504,835 4,260,458 
4,522,697 4,256,327 

12,590,496 12.441.719 

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group's 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

/nAUD 

Trade receivables 
Other assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

The aging of the Group's trade receivables at the reporting date was: 

lnAUD 

Past due 0-30 days 
P.<~c:t ril l&:>~ 1-1 ?() rlR\/C: ...... _ ... ----. ·-- __ ,_ 
Past due 121 days to 1 year 
More than one year 
Provision for impairment 

Consolidated 

2011 2010 

6,078,944 6,608,871 
7,693,975 6,144,368 

20,259.471 14,926,633 
34,032,390 27,679,872 

Consolidated 

2011 2010 

3,210,629 3,324.463 
75,484 

100,784 
166,282 

(146,877) 
3.406,302 

1?0 Rli~ ·--,- ·-
83,006 

327,584 
(145,467) 

3.710.429 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows: 

Balance at beginning of period 
Impairment loss recognised 
Balance at end of period 

Liquidity risk 

Consolidated 

2011 2010 
145,467 23,813 

1.410 121 ,654 
146,877 145,467 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and 
excluding the impact of netting agreements: 
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Liquidity r isk (continued) 
Consolidated 
30 June 2011 
lnAUD Carrying Contractual Within 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years 

amount cash flows 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 
Bank overdraft and loans 137.475,501 (152,506,248) (53,994,575) (98,511 ,673) 
Prom1ssory notes 96,844,482 (225,045,694) - (225,045,694) 
Redeemable preference shares 40,414,403 (84,662,104) (33,426.364} (51,235,741) 
Trade and other payables 8,085,661 (8,067,799) (8,067,799) 

282.820,047 (470.281,845) (62,062,374) (131,938,037) (276,281,434) 

Consolidated 
30 June 2010 
lnAUD Carrying Contractual Within 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years 

amount cash flows 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Bank overdraft and loans 147,659,015 (185,302,030) (27,451,616) (157,850.414) 
Promissory notes 93,573.580 (167,828,717) - (167,828,717) 
Redeemable preference shares 36,410,089 (59, 175.446) (25,632.207) (33,543,239) 
Trade and other payables 8,181,261 (8, 181,261) (8, 181,261) 

285,823,945 (420.487.454) (35,632,877) (183.482,621) (201,371.956) 

Fair values 
Fair values versus carrying amounts 
The fair values equal carrying amounts as at 30 June 2011 as well as 30 June 2010. 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Group's exposure to fore1gn currency risk at reporting date was as follows. based on notional amounts: 
Consolidated 

In AUD AUD NZD AUD NZD 

Current related party receivables 
Non current related party receivables 
Gross balance sheet exposure 

Interest rate risk 

30 June 201 1 

2,802 3,633 

2,802 3,633 

30 June 2010 

456,918 574,800 
1,325,663 1,582,329 
1,782.581 2,157,129 

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recogmsed financial assets at reporttng date, excluding the value of 
any collateral or other secunty held 1s equivalent to the carrymg value and classificatton of those fmancial assets (net 
of any prov1s1onsl as presented m the statement of financ1al pos•fion. 

Interest rate nsk is managed usmg a mix of float1ng and f1xed rate debt.Th1s is achieved by entenng 1nto Interest rate 
swaps. 
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Interest rate risk (continued) 

lnAUD 

Fixed rate instruments 
Fmancial assets 
Financial liabilities 

Variable rate instruments 
Financial assets 
F1nanc1alliabilit ies 

Consolidated 

Carrying amount 

2011 2010 

6,078,944 6,608,871 

~ 137,258,885) (129,983.669) 

(1 31.179.941) (123,374,798) 

20.259,471 14,926,633 

(1 37,475,501) (147,749.015) 

1117,216,030) ( 132,822.382) 

The Group has no Significant concentration of cred1t nsk with any single counterparty or group of counterpart1es. 

The Group does not have any material cred1t risk exposure to any single receivable or Group of receivables under 
financial instruments entered into by the Group. The trade receivables balance at reporting date does not 1nclude 
any counterparties with external credit ratings. Customers are assessed for credit worthmess using the criteria 
detailed above. 

Sensitivity analysis 

A change of 100 basis po1nts 1n Interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss 
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates 
rema1n constant. 

Consolidated prof1t or loss 
2011 2010 

100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 

1ncrease decrease increase decrease 
Financial assets 202,595 (202.595) 149,266 (149,266) 

Financial liabilities ~159.491) 159,491 (214,324) 2 14,324 

43,104 (43,, 04) (65,058) 65,058 

Exposure to interest rate risk 
Consolidated 30 June 2011 
lnAUD Carrying Within 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years 

amount 

Assers at variable mterest rate 
Cash and cash equivalents 20,259,471 20,259,471 

Liabilities ar vanable interest rate 
Bank overdraft and loans (137.475.501) (15,987.286) (121,488,215) 

(1 17,216,030) 4,272,185 (1 21 ,488.215) 

Denvauve mstrumenrs 
Ftxed for f loating 121.526,413 1.600.000 119,926,413 

4,310.383 5,872,185 (1,561,802) 
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25 Operating leases 
Leases as lessee 
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 

lnAUD 

Less than one year 
Between one and f1ve years 
More than five years 

26 Capital expenditure commitments 
Withtn one year 
One year or later and no later than five years 
Later than five years 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

1,977, 724 6,052.368 
3,379,602 18,393,748 
1,326,581 2,066,845 
6,683,907 26,512,961 

14,855,000 

14 855 000 

Capital expenditure commitments relate to project activities of Healthbridge Propertv Hawthorn Ptv Ltd. 

27 Contingencies 
The D1rector's are not aware of any cont1ngent liabilities as at report1ng date. 

28 Employee compensation commitments 
Key management personnel 

Short-term benef1ts 
Post Employment benefits 
Other 

Share based payments 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 
1,348,300 5,858,000 

104,244 327,000 

1,452,544 6,185,000 

Healthbridge Hawthorn Holdings Pty Ltd and Healthbridge CMS Pty Ltd. the subsidiaries of the Company 
1ssued $300,006 and $300,000 ordmary shares respectively to its management resulting 1n management 
holdmg eqUity 1nterest of approximately 18.5% and 8% 1n the respective businesses. As descnbed in note 
33 a loan from the Group was utilised to finance the Issuance of ordinary shares. 

These loans are repayable on the date on wh1ch employment or serv1ces providing by management ceases. 
or on the date when shares are sold . These loans are secured by any payment due to management and 
shares held. 
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29 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 

lnAUD 

cash flows from operating activities 
Loss for the period 

Adjustments for: 
Net finance expense 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Income tax expense 
Impairment loss 
Net profit on sale of investment 
Operating profit before changes in working 
capital and provisions 

Change tn trade and other receivables 
Change in trade and other payables 
Change in other assets 
Change 1n provisions and employee benefits 
Change in tax balances 

Net tnterest paid 
Income taxes paid 
Net cash from operating activities 

Note 

77 

12 

77 
23 

22 

Consolidated 

2011 2010 

(6,912,624) (30, 773, 163) 

31.297,417 
6,980,718 

989,521 
6,095,815 

(23,825,997) 

14,624.850 

529,927 
148,777 

3,048,303 
(631.464) 

(2,11 0,321) 
15,610,072 

(, 3,302,394) 
1,510.463 

3,818.141 

25,620.412 
8,521 ,054 
(5.479,845) 

(2,111,542) 

(3,888,242) 
9,345,133 

(5,491,678) 

3,073.498 

927,169 
(12,357,411) 

(2,084,157) 

(13,514,399) 
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30 Group entities 
Ultimate controlling party 
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is lronbridge Fund II LP. The ultimate con1rolling party was the 
same in the pnor reporting penod 

Ownership Interest 
Parent entity Counuy of mcorporst1on 

2011 2010 
Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd Australia 

Significant subs idiaries 

Healthbridge IVF Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100.0% 100.0% 
Healthbridge Shared Services Pty Ltd Australia 100.0% 100 0% 
Healthbndge Repromed Pty Ltd Australia 98.3% 98.3% 
Repromed FmancePty Ltd Australia 98.3% 98.3% 
Repromed Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 98.3% 98.3% 
Prepromed NZ Holding Pty Ltd Australia 98.3o/o 98.3% 
Repromed Australia Pty Ltd Australia 98.3% 98.3% 
Adelaide Fertility Centre Pty Ltd Australia 98.3% 98.3% 
Healthbridge Diagnostics Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 75.7% 
Australian Diagnostics Group Pty Ltd Australia 75.7% 
Pathology Victoria Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pathology NSW Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pathology D1agnostics Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pahthology Specialists Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pathology Vision Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pathology south Coast Pty Ltd* Australia 0.0% 
Pathology F;ist Pty Ltd * .A,ustra!ia 0.0% 

Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 77.0% 77.0% 
Monash IVF Ftnance Pty Ltd Australia 77.0% 77.0% 
Monash IVF Pty Ltd Australia 77.0% 770% 
Wesley Monash IVF Pty Ltd.,. Australia 46.2% 46.2% 
Wesley Monash JV* * Australia 46.2% 46.2% 
Monash Reproductive Pathology and Genetics Pty 
Ltd Australia 77.0% 77.0% 
Monash Ultrasound Pty Ltd Australia 77.0% 77.0% 
Healthbridge Property Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100.0% 100.0% 
Healthbridge Property Hawthorn Pty Ltd Australia 100.0% 1000% 
Healthbridge Obstetncs Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100.0% 100.0% 
Healthbridge CMS Pty Ltd Australia 92.0% 100.0% 
Healthbridge Hawthorn Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 81.5% 100.0% 
Healthbndge Hawthorn F1nance Pty Ltd Australia 81 .5% 100.0% 
Healthbridge Hawthorn Pty Ltd Australia 81 5% 100.0% 
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30 Group entities (continued) 

31 

*Although the Group held less than haft of the voting power of Pathology Victoria Pty ltd, Pathology NSW 
Pty Ltd. Pathology Diagnostics Pty Ltd. Pathology Specialists Pty Ltd, Pathology Vision Pty ltd, Pathology 
South Coast Pty Ltd, Pathology First Pty Ltd. Wesley Monash IVF Pty Ltd and Wesley Monash JV. the Group 
has consolidated these entities in accordance with MSB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements because it has the majority of risks and benefits associated with the ownersh1p and therefore 
has consolidated these entitles in its results tor the year ended 30 June 201 0. 

• • The Group's majority owned subsidiary Monash IVF Pty Ltd. holds a 60% interest in these entities as at 
30/06/11 (2010: 60%). 

During January and February 2011 Healthbridge Hawthorn Holdings Pty Ltd and Healthbridge CMS Pty Ltd. 
the subsidiaries of the Company issued $300,006 and $300,000 ordinary shares respectively to its 
management resulting in management holding equ1ty interest of approximately 18.5% and 8% in the 
respective businesses. As described in note 33 a loan from the Group was utilised to finance the 1ssuance of 
ordinary shares. 

On 31 January 2011, the Group sold its interest in Healthbridge Diagnostics Holdings Pty Ltd ('HDH') to a 
third party for proceeds totallilng $37 million, representing $36.5 million repayment of intercompany loans 
and $0.93 million for sale of shares. Of these proceeds $2.45 million was passed on to the minority 
shareholder, HDH employee Trust ('HOE'). The Group profit on disposal was recorded in the statement of 
comprehensive income as profit from discontinued operation. 

Parent entity 
Company 

lnAUD 30/06/2011 30/ 06/2010 

$ s 
Result of the parent eptity 
Profit/(ioss) for the period (2,085,794) (698,558) 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income for the period (2,085,794) (698.558) 

Financial position of the parent entity at year 
Current assets 5,378,803 3,200,266 
Total assets 163,564,191 156,346,893 

Current liabilities 50,968 4,260,014 
Total liabilities 118,115.212 117,055,908 

Total equity of the parent entitiy comprising of: 
Share capital 48,812,142 40,568,354 
Retained earnings (3,363, 163) (1,277,369) 
Total equity 45,448.979 39.290,985 
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32 Subsequent events 

On 16 September 2011 the Group divested assets rn It's equ1ty accounted rnvestment, Repromed 
Chnstchurch Ltd. This transaction will result in immaterial gain to the Group. 

In December 2010, a subsidiary company breached a f inancial covenant with its senior lender The breach 
was acknowledged by the lender but no action was taken by the lender whilst the subs1d1ary negotiated new 
covenants and other loan terms With the lender. An amendment to the funding arrangement was negotiated 
prior to 30 June 2011. The documentation for the revised arrangment was executed after the financial year 
end resulting in the loan being classified as current at year end in the financial statements of both subsidiary 
and in these consolidated accounts. 

As at the date of sign1ng these accounts the Repromed F1nance Pty Ltd and 1ts related entitles remarns 
compliant w ith its revised covenants. 

On 22 September 2011 not1ce was received from the Australian Taxat1on Office ('ATO') advising that a 
comprehens1ve nsk review will be undertaken 1nto the parent and the Repromed subsidiary respective tax 
consolidated groups, tax affairs for the 2009 and 2010 1ncome tax penods. At th1s stage the D1rectors are 
unable to determine what 1mpact the review will have. if any. The ATO review is ongoing at the date of this 
report. 

The ATO has undertaken a tax aud1t of the subsidiary Monash IVF Hold1ngs Pty Ltd ("Monash IVFH"l and 
Monash IVFH's tax consolidated group over the last 2 years. The ATO are 1n the process of f1nalismg thelf 
audit and requested support for the deduction of redemption premiums on certain financing instruments on 
an accruals basis The ATO are considering an alternative view that these premiums should be deducted 
when paid. In late April 2012, Monash IVFH supplied the ATO with strong legal opinion rncluding sen1or 
counsel adv1ce supporting the basis tor treatment adopted by Monash IVFH. The ATO has not yet 

responded to the submissions. If the ATO ma1ntain their position Monash iVF couid appeai the deeis1ofl. 
Whilst the Directors believe the appropriate treatment has been adopted if the ATO posit ion was upheld an 
est1mated tax payment of $5.6 million would be required to be made. The company have the cash resources 
to make such a payment and would remain compliant with bank covenants. 

The Directors of Monash IVF Holdings Pty Ltd approved a $2,814.036 div1dend to shareholders on 1 B 
October 2011. 

The Board 1s assessing the sale of land and buildings it owns along with the Group's Interest 1n the private 
hosp1tal bus1ness The pnvate hospttal was developed With designs and services 1n place to expand the 
hosp1tal beyond Its current configuration of 3 operatrng theatres and 30 overn1ght beds. Subsequent to the 
year end a Development Application was approved to add an additional two storeys to the buildtng and 
concepts for additional operating theatres and ward accommodation obtained. Proceeding With th1s 
expanston would dramatically improve the f1nanc1al performance of the hospital busmess. Accounting 
standards preclude recognition of the 1mproved f1nanc1al performance when assessing the carrying value of 
the ex1sting assets. Accordingly an 1mpa1rment of the value of the exist1ng assets related to the ex1st1ng 
business has been made, 

Other than d1sclosed above. there has not arisen in the 1nterval between the end of the financial year and the 
date of th1s report any Item, transaction or event of a matenal and unusual nature likely, m the op1nion of the 
directors of the Company. to affect significantly the operat1ons of the Group, the results of those operations, 
or the state of affalfs of the Group, m future f1nancial penods. 
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33 Auditors' remuneration 

lnAUD 

Audit services 
Auditors of the Company 

KPMG Australia: 
Audit ilnd review of financial report~ 

Pitcher Partners: 
Audit and review of financ1al reports 

Other services 
Audttors of the Company 

KPMG Australia 
Other assurance services 
Financial statement preparation 
T ax.ation services 

34 Related party transactions 

Transactions with key management personnel and related parties 

Consolidated 

2011 2010 

149,200 

149,200 

88,500 
45,000 
84.041 

217,541 

147.400 

42,364 
189.764 

17,000 
45,000 
84.041 

146.041 

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable 
than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

During the year ended 30 June 2010, a number of transactions tool< place with Directors (and the1r related 
entities) and other enttties controlled by the the ultimate parent of the Group lronbridge Fund II LP. 

Outstanding l>alances 

lnAUD 

Trade and other receivables - current 
IVF Auckland Ltd (associate of Repromed Australia) 
IVF Christchurch Ltd (assoctate of Repromed Australia) 
Vilmos Pty Ltd (minority Interest In Monash IVF) 
Other assets - current 
Vilmos Pty Ltd (minority Interest in Monash IVF) 
Other assets - non-current 
Vtlmos Pty Ltd (minonty Interest in Monash IVF) 
IVF Christchurch Ltd (associate of Repromed Australia) 
Repromed Management Trust 
Management of Monash IVF Holdings Pty ltd and the1r related parties 
Management of Healthbndge CMS Pty Ltd and their related parties 

Consolidated 
2011 2010 

27,951 

495,000 

25,000 
1,793.234 

600,284 
2.941 469 

162,690 
19,322 

1,000,000 

209,394 

1,782,583 
290,000 

1,707,842 

3 173 989 
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34 Related party transactions (continued) 
Redeemable preference shares 
Directors and the1r related parties 
Management of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Promissory notes 
Shareholders of the Group 
Directors and their related part1es 
Management of Healthbridge Enterprises PtY Ltd 

4,142,485 
11,594,796 

86,920.990 

Interest payable or paid for Redeemable preference shares and promissory notes 
Shareholders of the Group 23,518,045 
Directors and thetr related part1es 1 ,821,285 
Management of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 4,085, 706 

4,142.485 
11,594,796 

84,588.422 
1,944.448 

388,120 

6,369.961 
1.148,368 
2,619.295 

Repromed Management Trust, Monash Management and Healthbridge CMS loans were provided to 
management to take equity ownerships into Healthbridge Repromed Pty Ltd, Monash IVF Holdmgs Pty Ltd 
and Healthbridge CMS and controlled entities respectively. Loan to Monash accrues 5 per cent interest and 
loan to Healthbndge CMS Management accrues 10 per cent interest per annum. Loans are secured by any 
payment due to management and shares held. These loans are repayable on the date on wh1ch employment 
or services providing by management ceases, or on the date when shares are sold. 

As descnbed 1n note 9 acqu1s1tion related costs amounttng to $7,698,743 were paid to related parties of the 
ultimate parent ent1ty. An amount of $3,144,406 was pa1d to minorities of the group and $4,554,337 to 
equity holders of the Group. 
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Director's declaration 

In the opinron of the directors of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd (the " Company" ): 

a) the financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 6 to 49. are 1n accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(i) g1ving a true and fair v1ew of the Group's ftnanc1al position as at 30 June 2011 and of it's 
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and 

(il) comply1ng with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations), other mandatory professional reporting reqUirements to the extent described in 
note 2. and the Coroorations Reaulations 2001 ; and 

b) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company w111 be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable. 

c) The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 
2(a). 

ned in accordance With a resolution of directors. 

Richard Henshaw 
D1rector 

..1.. 
Dated at f\/6u .. ~,. thisLY day of May 2012. 
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Report on the financial report 

We have audited' the accompanying financial repott of Healthbridge Enterprises Pty Ltd (the 
company), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011 , 
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, notes I to 34 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and 
the directors' declaration of the Group comprising the company and the entities it controlled at 
the year's end or from time to time during the financial year. 

Directors' responsibility for the financial report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial repOit that gives 
a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations 
Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or 
eiTor. In note 2(a), the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard 
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements of the Group 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opmwn on the financial report based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing 
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
repmt is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial repmt. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
re levant to the entity's preparation of the financial repmt that gives a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
repmt. 

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial repmt 
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting 
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Group's 
financial position and of its performance. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

KPM G, an Australian partnership and a member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
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Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have comp lied with the independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001. 

Auditor's opinion 

In our opinion: 

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(i) gJVmg a true and fair view of the Group's financial pos ition as 
at 30 June 2011 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 
2001. 

(b) the financial report also complies with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as 
disclosed in note 2(a). 

KPMG 

Maurice Bisetto 
Partner 

Melbourne 

24 May 2012 
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